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SUBJECT: NRC INSPECTION REPORT NO. 03034837/2009001, GEO-TECHNOLOGY
ASSOCIATES, INC., ABINGDON, MARYLAND

Dear Mr. Cutter:

On January 14 and 15, 2009, Sattar Lodhi of this office conducted a safety inspection at your
facilities located in Somerset, New Jersey; New Castle and Georgetown, Delaware; and your
temporary job sites in Cherry Hill, NJ; and Millsboro, DE; of activities authorized by the above
listed NRC license. The inspection was an examination of your licensed activities as they relate
to radiation safety and to compliance with the Commission's regulations and the license
conditions. The inspection consisted of observations by the inspector, interviews with personnel,
and a selective examination of representative records. Additional information regarding your
corrective and preventive actions provided during telephone conversations on January 20, 2009,
and February 12, 2009, between you and Dr. Lodhi was also considered as part of the
inspection. The findings of the inspection were discussed with you at the conclusion of the
inspection on February 12, 2009. The enclosed report presents the results of this inspection.

Based on the results of this inspection, two apparent violations were identified, one of which is
being considered for escalated enforcement. The apparent violation being considered for
escalated enforcement involves two examples of the failure to use a minimum of two
independent physical controls that form tangible barriers to secure portable gauges from
unauthorized removal, whenever portable gauges are not under the control and constant
surveillance of the licensee as required by 10 CFR 30.34(i). In the first example, on

January 14, 2009, nine portable gauges were stored in a locked closet at your New Castle
facility, yet there were no independent physical controls that formed tangible barriers to secure
the gauges from unauthorized removal whenever the gauges were not in your control and
constant surveillance. Specifically, the back door to the storage area was unlocked and,
although the storage closet within this area was locked, the key to the lock was hanging on a
wall adjacent to the door. Thus the key was available to any one, including any unauthorized
individual, who could have entered the back room through the unlocked back door, thereby
enabling the unauthorized individual to gain access the gauges. Regarding the second
example, on January 15, 2009, four gauges were stored in a locked closet at your Georgetown
facility with only one tangible barrier. While the closet was locked and the key to the lock was
kept secured, the back door of the storage area was unlocked, so there was only one barrier
(lock on the closet) to prevent the unauthorized removal whenever the gauges were not in your
control and constant surveillance.
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During a telephone conference on February 12, 2009, Dr. Lodhi informed you that the NRC has
sufficient information regarding the apparent violation and your corrective and preventive actions
to enable the NRC to make an enforcement decision. However, Dr. Lodhi offered your
organization an opportunity to provide an additional written response or attend a predecisional
enforcement conference (PEC) prior to the NRC determining the appropriate enforcement
action. You stated that because you have already described your implemented and planned
corrective actions to the inspector a PEC was not necessary, and you declined the opportunity to
attend a PEC or provide additional written response.

This apparent violation of 10 CFR 30.34(i), and a second apparent violation of 49 CFR 173.448
regarding the failure to secure a transport container to prevent shifting during normal
transportation conditions, and your immediate and planned corrective actions are described in
the enclosed inspection report. In addition, please be advised that the number and
characterization of apparent violations described in the enclosed inspection report may change
as a result of further NRC review. You will be advised by separate correspondence of the
results of our deliberations on this matter.

Current NRC regulations are included on the NRC's website at www.nrc.gov; select Nuclear
Materials; Medical, Industrial, and Academic Uses of Nuclear Material; then Regulations,
Guidance, and Communications. The current NRC Enforcement Policy is included on the
NRC's website at www.nrc.gov; select About NRC; How We Regulate; Enforcement; then
Enforcement Policy. You may also obtain these documents by contacting the Government
Printing Office (GPO) toll-free at 1-866-512-1800. The GPO is open from 7:00 a.m. to 6:30 p.m.
EST, Monday through Friday (except Federal holidays).

Sincerely,
/RA/

John D. Kinneman, Director
Division of Nuclear Materials Safety

Enclosure:
Inspection Report No. 03034837/2009001

cc w/encl:

State of Maryland
State of New Jersey
State of Delaware
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